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BY THE BOARD:

This matter has been opened to the Board of Public Utilities ("Board") following an investi ~ation
by the Board's Bureau of Pipeline Safety ("BPS") pertaining to operator qualification ("00")
training and work performed by a contractor for Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Elizabe':htown
Gas Company ("ETOWN" or "Company") from January 2006 through January 2007. The BPS
conducted a comprehensive investigation pertaining to 00 training and work performed I)y
ETOWN's contractor, Northern Pipeline Company ("NPL "), on ETOWN'S natural gas distribution
system. The investigation included an evaluation of compliance with the applicable laws, rules
and regulations regarding the installation of various natural gas facilities by NPl. from Jarluary
2006 through January 2007. The contractor ceased to perform work for ETOWN in January
2007 I when ETOWN officials were advised of concerns raised by the BPS during its

investigation.

As a result of the investigation and subsequent follow-up inquiries involving the 00 and
installation records provided by ETOWN, the BPS determined that the Company was in
probable violation of the following natural gas pipeline safety regulations:

49 C.F.R.192. 805(b) & (h), which states "Each operator shall have and follc.w a
written qualification program. The program shall include provisiorls to:



(b) Ensure through evaluation that individuals performing covE~red tasks
are qualified; and

(h) After December 16, 2004, provide training, as appropriatEI, to enSllre that
individuals performing covered tasks have the necessa~f knowledge
and skills to perform the tasks in a manner that ensures the safe
operation of pipeline facilities; and..."

N.J.A.C.14:6-3.13, which states, "Each gas company employee shalll be
adequately trained for the job to which he or she is assigned and have adeCluate
knowledge of the characteristics and hazards of natural gas. Employees assigned
to positions covered by 49 CFR Part 192, Subpart N, shall be operator-qualified in
accordance with the requirements therein."

BPS Staff determined that ETOWN did not ensure that the individuals employecj by NPL were
properly qualified to perform covered tasks as required by its 00 Plan. Furthermore, thE!
training and qualification of NPL employees were not conducted in a manner ccmsistent 1f1ith
Plan requirements. Specifically, NPL employees either did not participate in 00 training for the
tasks they performed and/or were given the answers during the course of the e'"aluation

process.

It was also determined by the BPS that the Company's procedures were subjec:t to a No':ice of
Amendment in accordance with the following regulation:

49 C.F.R. 192.603 (c), which st:ates, "...the State agency that has sulbmitted a
current certification under the pipeline safety laws.. ..may reqlJire the opera tor to
amend its plans and procedures as necessary to provide a reasonclble level of

safety."

The BPS investigation revealed that ETOWN did not sufficiently oversee NPL's qualifica:ion
process and records to ensure that the contractor employees were in complianc::e 'with 00
requirements. The BPS review of the ETOWN OQ Plan indicated a deficiency regardin~ a
procedur~ to properly monitor and ensure compliance with required OQ e'l/aluajtions, as ':he 00
Plan had no procedure to monitor the OQ sessions of its contractor employees,

On March 19,2008, BPS Staff issued a Notice of Probable Violation to ETOWf-J, advising that it
found certain probable violations with the minimum federal safety standards as codified in Title
49 of ~ Part 192. The probable violations pertained to the Company's obligation tCI ensure
that its contracted employees at NPL were adequately and properly trained to perform cl~rtain
task specific work functions in accordance with the comprehensive operator qualificatior
requirements set forth in the federal pipeline safety regulations.

On December 26,2008, a Stipulation and Settlement Agreement ("Agreement" or "Stipulation")
was entered into by ETOWN and the BPS. The Agreement is attached a~) Appendix A.

Pursuant to the Agreement, ETOWN, without admitting to any violation of law or wrongdoing,
will provide a one-time payment to the Treasurer of the State of New Jersey in the! amoLlnt of
Sixty-Six Thousand Dollars ($66,000). Additionally, ETOWN has agreed that it will not ~eek to
recover any portion of this Sixty-Six Thousand Dollars ($66,000) from ratepayers. This
Stipulation also requires several corrective actions which were agreed to and VIIi I I be
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implemented by ETOWN. As listed in the Settlement Agreement, the Company Operator
Qualification Plan must be amended to include the following:

Performing periodic, documented monitoring of 00 training modules, 00 .3bilities
and skills sessions, and polyethylene ("PE") pipe fusion qualificcltions to ensure
compliance with established guidelines at all contractor locations doing work for the
Company. On an annual basis, the Company shall be in attendancle to monitor and
document at least 25% of the employees being trained at these OO! session~i of the
Company's approved blanket new business construction contrac1tors. For other
contractors who are awarded specific projects, the Company shall t>e in atte ,dance
to monitor and document their 00 training and qualification sessions at lea:)t once
per year, with emphasis on performing the monitoring during the awarded project
period or at the next 00 training session.

8.

b. Performing periodic, documented audits of 00 records for all contractor Jocations
doing work for the Company during the year to ensure that contractolr emploYI~es are
sufficiently qualified to perform the covered tasks required to perforrn vvork a~;signed
by the Company. The Company shall audit 00 records for each o'r the Contpany's
blanket new business construction contractors on a bi-annual basi:s. For other
contractors who are awarded specific bid projects, the Company shall audit 00
records once within one year of the initial bid award.

c. Performing periodic, documented audits of 00 evaluators I trainers who <:onduct
contractor 00 training modules, abilities and skills sessions and PE fusion
qualifications for qualifying contractor employees to determine that the evaluations
were conducted in a manner to ensure that employees are qualified to I)erform
covered tasks. This requirement may be accomplished in conjunction \vith (a)
above. The Company shall audit 00 evaluators I trainers for each of the Conlpany's
blanket new business construction contractors doing work for the Company ~)n a bi-
annual basis. For other contractors who are awarded specific bid proje~;ts, the
Company shall audit 00 evaluators I trainers once within one year of the in itial bid
award.

Performing periodic, documented audits by designated Company perso lnel to
ensure that contractor employees are performing covered tasks; in the field in
accordance with the Company Operating and Maintenance Manual and the C'perator
Qualification Plan. The Company shall audit contractor emplo:,/ees performing
covered tasks in the field for any covered tasks that they may be performin!~ at the
time of the audit. The Company shall at a minimum audit each contractor cre'N doing
work for ETOWN twice a month on average. The Company shall pro\ride as part of
the semi-annual report in section (e) below, a listing of all contractor emploYE!es and
the number of times they were individually assessed on an 00 tasik during that six
month period.

d

The Company shall provide a report to the Board's Bureau of Pipeline Safety one
month after the end of each half year which summarizes performi3nce against the
annual requirements of this Stipulation. The end of the year report shall sunlmarize
performance against the annual requirements of this Stipulation for the enti'"e year.
This report will be submitted in a format provided by the Bureau of Pipeline Sclfety.

e.
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f. Documentation associated with this auditing and monitoring shall be maintaine<1 for a
period of at least five years.

The Board has reviewed the Agreement and HEREBY FINDS it to be a reasonable settlerrlent
of the outstanding issues, in the public interest, in accordance with law and in accordance Nith
the intent and purpose of the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968 as amende,d, 49 ~&
1671 m §..§g. and all regulations promulgated thereto and the Natural Gas Safety Act, ~~
48: 1 0-2, m ~ and all regulations promulgated thereto. Therefore, the Board .t!I=REBY
APPROVES and ADOPTS the Agreement as its own, incorporating by reference the terms and
conditions therein as if fully set forth at length herein.

Accordingly, the Board HEREBY ORDERS ETOWN to comply with the terms of the Stipul~ltion
and Settlement Agreement as approved herein.

BOARD OF PUBLIC lJTILlTIE~)
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Appet1dix A

)

Pivotal Utility Holdings, Inc.
d/b/a Eliz~bethtown Gas Company

)
)
)
)

STIPlAATION AND
SETTLEMENT AGREEMEN"r

This Stipulation and Settlement Agreement ("Stipulation") is enten~ intci ~, and
petween the Staff of the New Jersey Board of PubJic Utilities ("Board Stair) and Pivotal
UtiJity Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Elizabethtown Gas Company ("ETO~ or "Compa~() .as of
this '2.(.~ay of December 2008.

WHEREAS, in January 2007 I Board Staff c~mmenced an investigation pt~rta~nk1g
to operator qualification training and work performed by Northern PipelinEt Coml~arlY for
ETOWN from January 2000 through January 2007 C'lnvestlgalionj; and

WHEREAS, the Bureau of Pipeline Sa1'ety of the New Jersey Bloard of F'ublic
Utilities C'Board') conducted the Investigation, including an evaluation ofC()mpliancet wiU1
applicable laws. rules and regulations pertaining to natural gas facilities; includin!~ the
Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, 49 ~B..1671 § MQ,., and Natural Gas Safety
Act, ~.J.SA 48:10-2.!"J. ~ (collectively "Applil;able Lawsj; and

WHEREAS, a.s part of 1he investigation, Board Staff advised ETOwr~ 1j1at it
found certain probablE, violations of Applicable Laws; and

WHEREAS, on Marct1 19. 2008, Board Staff issued a Notia! of F'roI)able
VIOlation, captioned as PS #7-08 (collectively the "Notlcesj; and

VVHEREAS, the parties have reached an agreement to resolve any and sill claims
the Board may have against the Company arising from or relating to the! Inv~;tig;ation.
including the Notices listed above, in a comprehlansive settlement in accordance wi1h the
terms of this St1>ulatJon.

.
WHEREAS, each pa~' agrees that this Stipulation represents a fair and

reasonable settlement .9f all issues that were or could have been raised in regard to the
'Investigation, or the Notices issued;; and

'lIfHEREAS, the resolution of this matter through lhe adoption of the stlpLllated
positions set forth herein best serves the interests of the parties, supports; judicial
economy and preservation of valuable judicial, administrative and corporate resotJlfces,
and is, therefore in the public /n1eresl

NOW T~EREFORE. the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. As a compromise of clvU penalties for alleged probabrl~ viol~ltiolns of
Applicable Laws. ETOWN, without any admisSK)n of any violation of Jaw ~)f wrongdoing,
shall make a one-time payment of Sixty Six Thousand DoBars 00/100. (:$66,000:(10) to
the Treasurer of the State of New Jersey. The Board shall dismiss all clairns it may have

~d



a'gainst ETOV\.f.J regarding violations of the Applicable Laws in connE~ction with the
Investigation. No later than thirty (30) days after the date that the Board ~~nters a ~rritten
Order approving this stipulation, ETOWN wil send a check for Sixty Six ThoLJsand
Dollars 00/100 ($66,000.00) payable to the Treasurer, State of New Je(s~~y to JosElph J.
Potena. Chief Fiscal Officer, Board of Public Utilltjes, 44 South Clinton Avenue. .~ IFloor,
P.O. Box 350, Trenton, New Jersey 08625

2. ETOWN agrees that it will not seek to recover any portion of this Sixty Six
Thousand Dollars 00/100 ($66.000.00) from ratepayers.

3. ETOWN's agreement to pay the roregoing sum: is not an ac:knowle~lment
of non-compliance with any law, including the Applicabre Laws, Board Ol"ders, ,or E~ard
requirements. The payment is made as part of a negotiated stipulation intE~nd,ed to
resolve the claims of the respective parties with respect to the Investigatiorl without
further litigatioo.

4. In addition to reaching a resolution of the above violaticlns, thle 130ard
requires amendment of the Company operator qualification procedures to indude
monitoring by the Company that ensures an adequate level of safety. In aC(:orciance
with 49.Q.E.B. 192.603(c). a -State Agency ...may... require the operator to amend its
plans and procedures as necessary to provide a reasonable level of safet:'f." The
Board's Bureau of Pipelile Safety has detemtined that the Com~>any IDp.~rator
Qualification Plan mu~ be amended to include the following:

s. Performing periodic, documented monitoring of 00 training modulles, OQ
abilities and skills sessions and PE fusion qualifications to enSlJre compliance
with established guidelines at all contractor locations doingl work: fo,r the
Company. On an annual basis, the Company shall be In attenclan,ce to
monlof and -document at least 25% of the employees befng u-ained at Ithese
00 sessions of the Company's approved blanket new busine~.s construction
contractors. For other contractors 'who are awarded specifilc projl~;. the
Company shall be in attendance to ,monitor _and document thl~1r OO! trclini1g
and qualification sessions at least once per year, with emptllasls on
performing the monitoring during trn! ,awarded project period or at the next
00 training sessIon.

b. Perfonning periodic, documented auciits of OQ records for all contJ-ador
locations doing work for the Company during the year tI~ ensure that
comractor employees are sufficientl)' qualified 10 perfonn the coveflad tasks
required to perform W9fk assigl'\ed by the Company. The C~ompalny shall
audit OQ records for each of the Company's blanket !new business
construction contractors on a bi-aMual basis. For other contnactors who are

.awarded specific bid projects, the C:ompany shall audit 00 records once
within one year of the initial bid award.

c. Perfonning periodic, documented audits of oa evaluators I trainers who
conduct contractor 00 training modules, abilities and skills sessions and PE
fusion qualifications fOr qualifying contractor employees 10 dete~rmine th~d the
evaluations were conducted in a manner to ensure thai e'mploye~1 are
qualified to perfon11 covered tasks. This requirement may be ac;complishled in
conjunction with (a) above. ~ Company shall audit OC1 evaluatorS I

(19'l:VO 00 OC osQ
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trainers for each of 1he Company's blanket new business construction
contractors doing work for the Company on a bi-annual basis. IFor other
contractors who are awarded specific bid projects, the Company shall audit
00 evaluators I trainers once within one year of the initial bid award.

d. Performing periodic, documented audits by designated Company personnel
to ensure that contractor employees are performing covered tasks in the field
in accordance with the C()mpany Operating and Maimenance Manu~11 and the
Operator Qualification Plan. The Company shall audit contractor employees
performing covered tasks in the field for any covered tasks that th~1J may be
performing at the time of the audit. The Company shall at a minimum audjt
each contractor crew doing work for ETG twice a month on averalge. The
Company shal provide as part of the semi-annual report in section (e) below.
a listing of all contractor employees and the number of times they were
individuany assessed on an OQ task during that six month period.

8. The Company shaft provide a report to the Board's Bureau of Pipefine Safety
one month after the end of each half year which summarizes performan~
against the annual requjrements of this Stipulation. The end of the year
report shall summarize performance against the annual requiremeJ1lts of this
Stipulation for the entire year. This report will be submitted in a format
provided by the Bureau of Pipeline Safety.

Documen1atlon associated with this auditing and monitoring shall be
maintained for a period of at Jeas1 five years.

f.

5. The parties agree that the terms of this Stipulation shall not bE~ cited or
otherwise used by or against each other or other. parties or argued as binding or
persuasive precedent in this or any other forum, except in any proceedm~1 to.enfon e the
Stipulation or the terms and conditions thereof and/or the Board Order adolrung this

StipulatiOn.

6. After this Stipulation has been fully executed, it shall be presented to the

Board for approval.

7. Upon written approval of this Stipulation by the Board, It sl1all then
constitute the entire agreement between the Board Staff and ETOWN with respt~ to the
Investigation and the above referenced matters, including the Notices, and shall operate
as a complete and final disposition of the Investigation by the Board subject only to the
futfilment of all the provisions of this StIpulation.

8. This Stipulation may not be amended in any way, or any part of its
provisions waived, except by wrfting executed by all the parties to this Stipulation. In the
event the Board modifies any provision of this Stipulation, absent expres:s writen
consent of the parties, the Stipulation shall be void, and the parties shan be restored to

their positions prior to the execution of the Stipulation.

9. This Stipulation may be executed in as many counterparts as there are
signatures, thereof, each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute
one and the same instrument. No amendment or waiver of any substantive provision of
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this Stipulation shall be effective U,n)ess it Is agn~ to by the authorized representative
fA ead1 party hereto.

10. Trjs Stipulation shal be governed by, ar.t construed in a~!anoe ,1\;t1
1he laws d the State of New Jef$ey

NOW. THEREFOOE, ~e PartieS cause this Stipulation to be executed by ti1eir ckKy
authOrized officers or offici*-

Dated: / 1./ 0< ~ /"",002'" By: ~-l2A~ ~~::...~a~ ~ ~--- r
Diredor-Reguiatory Affairs
on behalf d
Pivo1a UtiityHoidings. R,
dftXa Eizabetht~ Gas C:cmparlY

ANNE MILGRAM
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE
STATE OF IEWJERSEY

Attorney for ti1e Staff d UMI
New Jerse~ Boa~ ct Pubfil: Utmlil~

~
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